
  
 
 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE RIVERVIEW CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF RIVERVIEW, WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

HELD ON MONDAY, APRIL 13, 2020 A.D. 
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF 

THE PETER ROTTEVEEL MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
14100 CIVIC PARK DRIVE, RIVERVIEW, MICHIGAN 48193-7600 

 
VIA TELECONFERENCE 
 
Notice was hereby given that due to precautions being taken to mitigate the spread of the Coronavirus 
(COVID-19) and protect the public health, the Regular Meeting of the Riverview City Council was held 
electronically on Monday, April 6, 2020, at 7:30 p.m. The meeting was held in compliance with 
Governor’s Michigan Executive Order No. 2020-15 effective March 18, 2020 and continuing until April 
15, 2020 at 11:59 p.m. 
 
Members of the public who wished to participate in the meeting through electronic means had access to 
the meeting through the following methods: 
 
Virtual Meeting Option: 
Access the meeting room via https://us04web.zoom.us/i/154321935 
 
Telephone Option: 
Directions: 
1.Dial: 13126266799 
2.Enter meeting code: 154 321 935# 
3.Enter # 
 
Email Option: 
Public comments could be sent through email at: clerk@cityofriverview.com and comments would be 
read at the meeting.  No emails were received. 
 
Rules of Procedure: 
Any member of the public wishing to comment during the Public Comment on Agenda Items on any 
agenda item (5 minute time limit) will be allowed to do so remotely by electronic or telephonic means 
set forth above. In order to maintain decorum, the Mayor and/or designee will determine the order of 
speakers and the appropriate time frame for which comments are allowed. 
 
 
The Virtual meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PRESIDING: Mayor Swift 
 
PRESENT:   Councilmembers Blanchette, Norton, ONeil, Towle, Trombley, Workman 
 
Also Present:  City Manager Drysdale, City Clerk Hutchison, Assistant City Manager and Land 
Preserve Director Dobek, Police Chief Rosebohm, Fire Chief Lammers, Human Resources Director 
Mayerich, Finance/Purchasing Director McMahon, Information and Technology Director Harper, Parks 
and Recreation Director Dickman, Department of Public Works Director Webb, Interim Golf Course 
Operations Manager Kettler, Library Director Frattarelli, Charles E. Raines Company City Engineer 
Sabak, Attorney Pentiuk 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
At this time, the Mayor asked if anyone wished to address the City Council.   
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN  :  I submitted a rather lengthy list of questions that I’d Like to ______and I 
could share it on the screen but you haven’t enabled screen sharing. 
 
(The mayor explained the instructions about public comments and the public hearing to the resident:) 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN  :  So my comments and feedback are that I have concerns that that the city 
may not have done their due diligence in looking at the distribution of the calls that the Fire and EMS 
go on.  The way I read the public hearing notice it appears as though the way you are assessing the 
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special assessment is by parcel or by lot and if that’s the case, for example, and I submitted all my 
questions in advance thinking that I wouldn’t have to do it again but, I have concerns that you’re 
disproportionately planning on having the assessment go to the single family home owners versus the 
multifamily and the senior citizen apartments and the multifamily dwellings in this city. In some case 
for example a single family home owner is get charged or assessed based on their single parcel, the apt 
complex off of Pennsylvania one of them has 300 apartments but because they only have one parcel the 
parcel will be assessed for one parcel and for  300 residents and if you look at the information that I 
requested from a FOIA based on the calls that the fire dept. does, there is a disproportionate number of 
calls that go to multi-family dwellings and the nursing and the senior housing facilities in the city. So I 
don’t want as a single family home owner I don’t want to pay 300% as compared to somebody who 
lives in one of the apartments. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  we can address this in the public hearing part but to answer your question Doug you 
can clarify this but the assessment is not going to be by parcel so somebody with a parcel with 300 
apartments is not going to pay the same as a single family home.  Is that correct? 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  That is correct the special assessment is based on the taxable value of your 
property so a home that maybe has a taxable value of 100,000 versus an apartment complex that has a 
million they will only pay on the 100,000 it’s not an equal allocation among parcels it is based on your 
taxable value so the parcels with more value will pay more. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN :  ok that wasn’t included in any of the disclosure of the financial assessment 
in any of the paperwork that you provided to the residents. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  But that’s how it is assessed and you are certainly right on the number of calls we 
do have several nursing facilities in the City of Riverview and multi-family homes so that would 
information is correct we do have a lot of runs 3000 plus runs a year to our residents in those 
complexes. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN :  yeah and I appreciate it and if you look at the information I sent you 25% 
of the calls in the last three years were to multifamily dwellings and 30% were to single family 
dwellings and it doesn’t . . 18% were to the nursing care facilities and only 11% were to commercial 
businesses or manufacturing in addition to the taxable value although the taxable value of nursing care 
facility either one of them or the senior towers might be more money they make a definitely more 
number of calls to those facilities. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I think that is one way of looking at it, but the way we look at it we can’t distinguish 
who should what resident pays more everybody . . it’s based on the taxable value on the property is the 
fairest way we can do it  not as on the number of calls that would likely go to your residence I guess is 
the best way to put it. So anyway, we are at the Public Comments part of the meeting and we need to 
keep it for five minutes so Heather if you want to wrap up you can speak again during the Public 
Hearing. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN :  thank you, I’d appreciate if you could share some of the information that I 
provided um to the city council because I think the citizens would be interested in seeing it.  I 
understand the taxing or assessing the people based on the value of their home but if because there is a 
disproportionate number of calls to the nursing homes and the senior citizens’ facility um you can 
weight in the additional to the taxable value you can weight the assessment based on the number of 
calls that go to that that’s that’s simple data 101. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thank you. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Thank you. 
  
MAYOR SWIFT:  Is there anybody else with their hand raised for the Guest and Visitor Comment 
Portion? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, I see none, Doug do you see any?  
  
MR. DRYSDALE:  I do not Mayor there is nothing in the chats. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, so we will move on to the Public Hearing. 
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PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
Mayor Swift opened the Public Hearing at 7:42 p.m. and read the background of creating a Special 
Assessment District: 
 
A VERBAL TRANSCRIPT OF THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT PUBLIC HEARING 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: On January 6, 2020, City Council authorized and directed the city manager to prepare 
cost estimates for hiring fulltime firefighter/paramedics at the Riverview Fire Department.  These cost 
estimates have been prepared and shared with the Ad Hoc Public Safety Committee and the City 
Council.  It is anticipated that the Special Assessment levy will offset any expiring sewer debt judgment 
levy millage. 
 
For purposes of funding these costs and expenses, the City Council has directed the city manager to 
tentatively create a special assessment district pursuant to Michigan Public Act 33 of 1951, as amended, 
against which the estimated cost and expenses will be assessed.   The tentative special assessment 
district will encompass all the lots and parcels of land located within the City of Riverview. 
 
A public hearing must be held to allow comments on the estimated costs and the creation of the special 
assessment district.  Notice of the public hearing was published 
 
So with that, is there any comments council wants to make at this time before we open it up to the 
public? 
  
(The Mayor gave instructions to the public on how to communicate with council during this virtual 
public hearing.) 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Ms. Hutchison can you share, assuming you have share permissions, can 
you share the letter that I sent to the city council? 
 
CLERK HUTCHISON:  I believe the City Manager has your letter. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN ONEIL:  It was forwarded to all of us. 
   
MR. DRYSDALE:  It was sent to the entire council at 5:00. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  OK so all council has it. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Ok, but I’d like the people other than city council, I’d like the public to see 
it. 
   
MAYOR SWIFT:  Do we have that ability Doug? 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Yes, you do at the bottom of the screen you can share but you’ve disabled 
the participant screen sharing so I can’t share it, but I don’t know if Ms. Hutchison can. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Your honor I can share that, we have the  screen sharing turned off to prevent 
people from sharing things from their screens, we have no control  what they can share and so we don’t 
want to get zoombombed or anything like that.  That’s why it has been turned off. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: Ok. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE: If you give me a second, I will pull up the information. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Thank you. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok and we’ll wait for that. 
 
COUNCILMAN NORTON:  Your Honor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Norton. 
 
COUNCILMAN NORTON: While we’re waiting, could I ask what -- Heather you said there wasn’t 
something  included what was it that you wanted included in the mailing. 
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HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  I have other questions that I’d like to get answers to and I’d also like the 
public who’s on today to see the graph that I put together.  If I was there in person I would have done a 
presentation so everyone could have seen it but I’m not. 
 
COUNCILMAN NORTON:  All right thank you. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I’m sure she wants to go to page 2 is that correct Heather you want to see page 2. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN: No just go to the yeah, yeah. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok. 

 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  So I have a couple of questions that I that weren’t addressed in any of the 
documentation that was shared with the public whether that be from the city clerk or otherwise. 
 
Question 1:  what’s the proposed term for which the special assessment will take place?  Is it 2020 or 
year over year? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  The special assessment would be for one year and that would get us up to what we 
need to do is obviously, this is cost some money so what we’re doing here is if we did a millage or 
something in November that would be too late.  We need some more of this money up front to get this 
going. So the special assessment plan is to have that for one year. And then next year, we are going to 
have to do this again next year because of the time frame so the intent would be to do it again next year 
for one year and then also in November of next year we put it on the ballot so that we don’t have to 
keep doing this. So we do want to get it to the point where the electorate can vote on this so that’s the 
intent.  Special assessment for one year from June to June and then another special assessment and then 
get in on the ballot in November of 2021.  If that’s not right, that’s where council can feel free to 
correct me. I believe that’s the intent. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, go ahead Heather 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Ok, I’m assuming that’s correct.  That’s it one year cuz I didn’t hear 
anything from the council to the contrary.  The other one is the special assessment indicates that it will 
pay for a limited number of full time employees yet there are two proposed scenarios:  six full-time 
with 22 part time or 8 full-time with 20 part time.  So the question I have is what the current staffing 
levels are by shift and will the full time to part-time shift distribution be the same if the special 
assessment is approved?  
  
MAYOR SWIFT:  Doug, can you best answer that? 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes, Your Honor.  What the resident is looking at was the proposal that we gave to 
the public safety committee with different scenarios.  The recommendation was to go for 8 full-time 
paramedic/firefighters,  This would allow us to have two (2) paramedics on duty every shift, 24 hours a 
day, 7 days a week, 365 days a per year.  As you know, to run our ambulances at Advance Life 
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Support, they require having a paramedic on the ambulance.  So this would allow us to have both 
ambulances in service every minute of every day. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, does that answer your question Heather? 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Yes, it does, thank you, and then the other one is would the council 
consider starting with scenario two (2) and perhaps expand to eight (8) fulltime over time? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I guess that we would have to reserve answering that because we need to see if two 
(2) per shift doesn’t work out for whatever reason that would be a consideration, but that is not the 
intent right now the intent is to start out with a was it eight (8) Doug is that what you said? 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes, yes you know your honor with six (6) full timers, we would be running into 
issues of potentially not have full-timers on duty because of overtime which raises the cost more.  So 
that’s why between myself and my staff in presenting this to the Public Safety Committee, we all agree 
that eight (8) would be a good number it would allow us to fill in shifts with full-timers as needed 
without causing overtime. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thanks. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN: Thanks and that kind of goes back to the question A) was the distribution of 
full time to part-time so if you have eight (8) paramedics on staff, you have different shifts right?  You 
have the day shift, the afternoon, the midnight shift right?  So the question was the distribution of full-
time to part-time by shift.  So you gonna have the coverage because you’re going to have the eight (8) 
full-time paramedics and some of the part-time are paramedics as well. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: Yes, go ahead Doug or Bill. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  The firefighter/paramedics, we don’t have just a firefighter group which 
was something we talked about setting up.  But all our existing personnel have dual capabilities. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct, so we’ll have the eight (8) paramedics.  The other ones will be a mix of 
paramedic/EMT specialists.  Is that correct Doug? 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes, yes but by the state regulations, we cannot just have a firefighter as the second 
person on the ambulance.  They have to be at least an EMT level certified and Chief Lammers can 
confirm that if I’m not correct. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Bill. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Yes, but our goal is to hire people who are firefighter/paramedics not just 
the paramedics. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Do you also have MFRs Medical First Responders or are they just EMTs 
and paramedic classification? 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE: They are firefighter/paramedic classification. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Right, and I don’t know if know the number of part-timers that we’re going to have. 
Doug do we know that yet on any one shift? 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Well, the goal would be to have two (2) full-timers working 24 hour shifts, so they 
are there all day.  The part-timers then would subsidize the dept. or fill in the staffing.  I’m not sure 
what the chief has determined yet how long of shifts.  Currently, we do have three (3) shifts one is a 
twelve (12) hour shift the other two (2) are is six (6) hour shifts. He’s still evaluating how to staff the 
part-time people, but they would be to supplement the full-timers and bring us up to a minimum of four 
(4) on duty. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thanks, anything else Heather? 
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HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  No, so I’ll skip--I already asked for 3) I did that in the beginning talking 
about waiting the distribution, but you can see here you know that these are some of the statistics that I 
referenced earlier. The other part is the notice which you guys kind of addressed question number 3) 
already.  That you’re going to be doing it based on property values; but, like I said, I have some 
concerns with that.  But relative to number 4), it says it will pay for part or certain costs and expenses.  
So I’m wondering what the cost expenditure that you did, I’m just curious, and you kind of touched on 
it, Andy, if the future plans include raising the base property taxes in line with the Headlee Amendment 
or a special millage, do you plan on having that go forward. And it sounds like from what you said 
earlier, that, in fact, the assessments would be on a recurring yearly basis right now? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Yes, this year and next year, yes. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN: All right, thanks, could you go to the next page sorry, thank you.  Ok, so I 
kinda already touched on top there but the supporting data the public hearing notice that was mailed to 
the residents showed a street map and it didn’t show the parcel lot map, so that not any of the residents 
couldn’t even look at what the parcel distribution was.  Another thing for your information and this is 
probably to the city clerk, your city map hasn’t been updated since before 2004, so you might want to 
do that-- that’s your parcel or plat map.  The information on the _____ through a FOIA, I looked at all 
of the calls that the Riverview Fire Dept. has made in the last three years, and I’m assuming that the 
city council has also looked at this rather than listening to the Fire Chief wanting to convert the part-
time to full-time.  So I’m so looking at this information and I kinda touched on it earlier, 30% of the 
city of the calls that are run go one single family dwellings 25% go to multi-family and 18% go to 
nursing care and then go down from there.  So obviously vehicular is like people driving through the 
city and that kind of stuff this is city property, police department, this is municipal city and schools so 
this is what I was talking about even though you are accounting for the assessed property value, I 
believe based on the pie chart here the multi-family dwellings for example have 25% of the calls that 
are run by the fire dept. and 18% by the nursing care facilities and down from there.  That’s why I’d ask 
that the council consider weighting it.  Other municipalities do this as well, so I’d ask you to consider 
that. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, Bill.  Councilmember Towle.  
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  That’s all I have. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Thank you, Heather, but wait--Councilmember Towle may have a question. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  To address the last question, could we have our legal dept. look into it to 
see if we could see somehow put some kind of annual costs or assessment just against the nursing 
facilities because of the number of calls and we didn’t find any evidence to accomplish that.  And yet 
when  you talk multi home dwellings that goes from  a person who have a two room unit to  50 room 
units and again a larger share of our calls the last report I saw was actually 20% but there’s no way 
around doing this other than you couldn’t do it on a per call ____________________ for example I 
mean many people have lived in this city for years here for years and probably never had to use city 
ambulance service as you get older its gets kind of increased so you know there’s no other way of 
doing it that’s possible other than based on assessed valuation to make it fair.  That’s all. 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  you actually have the information or your fire  department has that so they 
can look, for example, between Rivergate Terrace-Rivergate Healthcare Center, there’s 493 beds; and if 
you look at Riverview Towers, that’s got 171 apartments, American House has 150 apartments, Atria 
Kinghaven has 143.  So this information that I easily found by making phone calls or going to websites 
so the information is there. And to be fair, whether you have four (4) people living in an apartment or a 
two (2) person or one (1) person, it’s a dwelling so that information is known.  In fact, if you look at the 
Fire Dept. records, you can tell where the calls are going to and it doesn’t have to include MPII 
information. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  The Fire Dept. did provide us with the number of calls provided to the 
nursing facilities in over a couple month period and even past a couple years period of time and we 
were keeping track of that when we were having all the various staffing issues and looking at other 
options that we had available. And since we weren’t able to employ is the reason that we were put into 
a position that we had to subcontract to insure that we had ambulance service for our community. 
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HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Don’t get me wrong, I’m all about having a full-time emergency services 
personnel.  I’m just concerned that you have a disproportionate number of businesses, like an apartment 
complex or a nursing home or a senior living facility, we have quite a few of those in the city. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Those concerns have been expressed by others too.  One other point I want 
to make you know this is a plan we hope it resolves the problem it may not, you know, this 
combination may not work but for years again we had a part-time fire dept. that provided full-time 
services, and it worked out well, but the model just isn’t working. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: this is the best option we have right now.  So ok, anything else Heather? 
 
HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  No, thank you, thanks for your time. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Thank you very much. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, Doug can you unshare that so I can get my screen back? Ok, let me turn chat off 
so we can look through the list here – ok anyone else?  Lynn go ahead. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  Thank you, can you hear me? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Yes. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  Ok, just an FYI for everyone, as of today as of this meeting, we 
do not have EMTs in the fire dept. We have paramedics and specialists--no EMTs. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Thank you, Lynn. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  You’re welcome.  
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, I’ll scan the list here to see if anybody else has their hand raised.   While we’re 
waiting actually what we’ll do--we did receive a couple of letters or emails from residents that we told 
that their comments would be read into the record so I want to do that now. This one, let me see if 
anyone has their hands raised, ok I don’t see any hand raised.  If you are looking to raise your hand I 
will remind you, it’s *9 on your phone or raise your hand icon on the Zoom screen.  So while we’re 
waiting, I do have a letter from Mr. Mike Candela, 14095 Dundee Street, obviously Riverview, 
Michigan.  He said: 
 
(CANDELA Email:)  I think the idea for a special assessment for hiring firefighter/EMTs, which I 
understand is for 8 personnel, using the 1.47 mills from expiring sewer debt is a good idea.  Further, I 
understand that the 1.47 mils would not cover the cost of 8 firefighters/EMTs and the city would 
probably dip into the general fund reserve to cover the shortfall. 
 
I do not think dipping into the general fund reserve is a good idea.  Remember 2008, when the city had 
to scramble to find funds.  The city needs a strong reserve fund especially during difficult times.  It is 
my understanding that the city wants to have two EMTs on duty 24/7, so it can have two ambulances in 
service.  Why does the city feel it needs two ambulances on duty 24/7.  Is there some sort of mandate 
for 2 ambulances or just nice to have? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: What I’ll do is to answer that the best I can and then if any other council member 
wants to chime in.  We’ll answer his questions as we go along. That one to me was pretty easy to 
answer because we had 3000 plus runs every year.  As mentioned before, we have several senior 
facilities in our city that seems that we get new ones all the time, so I feel there is a need.  So if any 
other councilmember feels differently or even the same feel free to speak up. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Mayor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Trombley. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Mayor, I’ve lived here a long time obviously you know that Andy, or 
Mayor I’m sorry. There’s been many, many times where we get double runs and if our one ambulance is 
out we’re kinda caught with our … 
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MAYOR SWIFT:  We get it. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Yep, yep, so I absolutely do think that we need these two ambulances 
in service.  And here’s why and Mike I know you’re out there somewhere. Let’s say were on one run 
and the second runs needs to go to the Candela household--oh what am I gonna tell Mike cuz we don’t 
have one sitting there.  So that’s why we need one and then if there both being used and they’re out well 
then we have a third situation that we go to and that would be go ahead Mayor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Mutual Aid. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Yes, Mutual Aid. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: Ok. Are you done there Councilman Trombley? 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Yes, I’m watching his questions here on the . . . 
  
MAYOR SWIFT: You have the chat going? Ok fine. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Your Honor, I could share those comments to the screen so everybody can see them 
if you’d like. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Yes please 
. 
COUNCILMAN NORTON:  Your honor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Norton. 
 
COUNCILMAN NORTON:  We have the fire chief on with us does he have information on how often 
both of them  get utilized because from what I know I think they are being utilized you know like like 
Councilman Trombley said quite often two runs back to back. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Yep, yep, its regular, while he’s putting numbers up, Chief Lammers, if you have 
them fine, if not, we will get those, but I will continue on.  
  
(CANDELA Email:) “It is also my understanding that if the special assessment is implemented it would 
have to be revised each year and passed.  If the special assessment is rejected in future years, what will 
happen to the firefighters/EMTs under the special assessment? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  That one’s pretty easy, too.  If it fails, we go back to our original staffing if at all 
possible.  But as we talked earlier, we’re doing a special assessment this year.  The plan is to do it again 
next year. but then also, putting it on the ballot in November 2021, so we don’t have to keep doing that. 
And the intent is to certainly to at least this year match the retiring sewer debt of 1.47 mills that kinda 
matches the amount of income that we need for the a for getting this rolling. 
  
(CANDELA Email:) It is my understanding that the proximity of the fire dept. has an impact on 
homeowners’ insurance.  Would hiring of the firefighters/EMTs reduce home insurance premiums? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Doug, I think that would be either a question for you or for Chief Lammers.   
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  I can preface it by saying that the Chief did look at that and I believe there is a, this 
will reduce our ISO rating, but I will let him explain how that works. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  OK, Chief Lammers, if you’re on. 
 
CHIEF LAMMERS  Yeah, Good evening Your Honor.  I don’t know if you can hear me.  I seem to 
have lost my video. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  We can hear you fine, Chief. 
 
CHIEF LAMMERS  As long as you can hear me, the idea is that anything we do in the fire dept. to 
better our service has a direct reflection on ISO ratings within the community.  So going from a part-
time dept. to a combination dept. where we utilize a combination of full-time and part-time personnel 
should have an impact on reducing ISO ratings plus a reduction in home owners’ insurance rates. 
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MAYOR SWIFT:  Also did we have the same effect, too, when we bought the new fire truck? Wasn’t 
the result of lowering the rating?  
 
CHIEF LAMMERS  That should also have an effect on that -- that’s correct. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thank you Chief,  
 
CHIEF LAMMERS  You’re welcome. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Council, have any other questions for the Chief before we move on? 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  I think the question was Mayor, do we need two ambulances? That’s 
what I was looking for with the Chief. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  We got past that, Chief, your opinion on the two ambulances. 
 
CHIEF LAMMERS  I looked at Mr. Candela’s comments earlier.  There is no mandate that we have to 
have a particular number of ambulances or rescues.  We are licensed by the State of Michigan for two 
ALS ambulances and that is dictated on run volume.  There have been times, many times, where we get 
back-to-back calls and we have both ambulance units out.  In that case, we would call for mutual aid 
from one of our neighboring cities.  But the run volume dictates the amount of equipment that we have 
and the rescues that we have. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Does our run volume constitute two ambulances? That’s what I’m 
looking for. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I think that’s what he stated. Thank you Chief 
 
CHIEF LAMMERS  You’re welcome. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  And then, and lastly: 
  
(CANDELA Email:)  Having some experience with special assessments, will the city send out a survey 
as was done in the past to the city residents to determine level of resident support?  If so, would a non-
response be considered non-support or will the city implement a special assessment without no support 
by residents? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I don’t know what our intent is for next year.  I’m sure we’ll have the announcement 
of the whole special assessment district and we’ll go through, I’m assuming, the same process we did 
this year trying to get a feedback from the community that way.  It’s hard to tell what you consider non-
response is that support.   I don’t know how to answer that at this point if council has a better way to 
answer it, feel free.  
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I can’t see the whole council, Doug, because of the screen sharing, so I don’t hear 
anybody, so that’s a tough one to answer.  But, we would do the best we can to get the word out to make 
sure everybody knows and then the real response will be when it goes on the ballot in November of what 
kind of support we’re going to provide to the community as far as our staffing at our fire dept. goes. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  So would you turn that off, Doug if you don’t mind. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:   Thank you and I’ll see if anybody’s hand is raised yet. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, while Doug’s working on that, we did receive another email from Fran 
Christiansen or Fran Christian, I’m sorry.  The address is 13950 Village Lane.  Now I’ll read that one as 
we go here. 
 
(FRAN CHRISTIAN email:)   
“To Mayor and Council: 
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I appreciate you taking my email into consideration regarding my comment on the added cost that us 
taxpayers will need to endure for hiring full-time firefighter paramedics at the Riverview Fire Depart., I  
am definitely against incurring the added cost of this special assessment levy.  
 
Even though you have anticipated the special assessment levy will offset an expiring sewer debt 
judgment levy millage and will not add taxes at this time…what about the future time that might or 
probably incur added costs of raises of these newly hired individuals; what about the present economy 
and what about we are all going through with the current COVID19 pandemic???  I couldn’t even 
believe that you are calling this meeting for special assessment of property taxes at this time with all the 
hardship everyone is enduring to suggest additional funds for hiring individuals for the fire dept. at this 
time.  
 
I believe the City of Riverview has done very well with the present Riverview fire depart. and/or 
employees AS IS.  Our district has not gotten larger, nor has the number of residents gotten larger. 
except for standard increases birth/deaths.  There should be NO need to hire additional firefighter 
paramedics at this time and hold the special assessment over our heads for the district that encompasses 
the City of Riverview if not many changes to the number of residents or businesses that uses the 
Riverview fire department. 
 
I have lived in Riverview for 50 years (not far from the Fire Station) and feel that if there is an expiring 
sewer debt judgment levy millage available for possible added funds, now would be a very good time to 
hold on to that and give back to City of Riverview residents; for what I foresee as a very rough time 
coming up, for a lot of people and/or businesses to pay their property taxes from the economic outcome 
of this pandemic. 
 
Thank you for considering my argument. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I’ll give my comment, well does council want to comment on that first? 
 
COUNCILMAN NORTON:  Your Honor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Hold on a second Councilman Norton, Doug, I can only see three people here with 
that screen sharing going. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Ok, I can pause it for now. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, oh, ok that’s the current letter I see all right.  Ok, Councilman Norton go ahead. 
 
COUNCILMAN NORTON:  I think it’s very important that the residents know that this is something 
that is being talked about for a very long time.  I mean I remember back in June and August sitting in on 
Public Safety meetings where this was talked and I know it had been talked about prior to that.  This 
isn’t something that we just came up with in the last few months or weeks. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Thank you, any other Councilmember?  Councilwoman ONeil. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN ONEIL:  Also, too, I think that they need to realize that this was scheduled quite a 
bit before the pandemic even came about.  This meeting, it wasn’t just something that we just came up 
with within the last month. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Towle. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Yes, I’d like to also point out that you know that the current _______ in 
order to meet the needs of the _______________subcontract we had no choice but to subcontract 
ambulance.  There is a cost to that if we are to continue on with that in the plan that we are currently 
viewing. Because those individuals in the ambulances are strictly paramedics--they’re not firefighters.  
We have occasions where we didn’t have any firefighters on board-- we were strictly paramedics. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, any other Councilmember? Well then, I’ll add to--the city may not be growing 
population wise, but we certainly with the several new nursing facilities and the other day care type of 
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facilities we have here—there’s certainly going to be a continuing need for the staff we have.  Maybe 
that resident’s not aware of the issues we’ve been having.  We’re struggling with getting staff.  This has 
already been talked about. Ah so um we need to do something.  The status quo is not going to work as 
stated before, the model worked for us for years and years until there became a shortage of people 
wanting to be firefighters/EMTs ah paramedics.  As so um there were many options talked about 
through the years with the Public Safety committee and council addressed that.  This is the one that we 
feel that has the most, the highest percentage to succeed.   There still may need some tweaking after it’s 
done, but this is the best chance we have to address the problem.  Any other Councilmembers? 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor, yeah you know the fire dept. was struggling prior to this _______ ok 
so I’m sure they are even struggling harder today or at least for some extended period of time before the 
number of calls are reduced.  If it ever gets to the point where we don’t get enough number of calls to 
justify having two ambulances even, I’m sure that’s something that council would look at. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct, I’m going to try to scroll through the ah - I’ll turn the chat off here.  I still 
don’t see any raised hands, so I’ll go on to the next letter that we have. 
 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  I’m raising my hand Mayor, but I got this paper in front of me.  I don’t 
know if you can see me. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I can only see a few of you so go ahead Councilman Trombley. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Anyways, I’m going to go back to the to that ah you know times have 
changed, obviously, but we have went from 40 some firefighters down to I believe the number now is 
21.  A couple of the reasons are:  is the firefighters 1) they have another job so they can work part-time 
and they can do this. Second a number of the firefighters are going to full-time fire departments because 
of benefits and that kind of stuff for their families.  So, every week the council and the mayor are getting 
a call saying that we’re short and we don’t have anybody there and we don’t want to leave our residents 
unprotected.  So like you said, we get the ambulance from the outside.  We don’t want to do that.  We 
want to have our own ambulances -- our own people.  So this is what we’re doing.  And as far as Fran, 
Hi Fran, I’m gonna, I have to give you an example because I don’t know if some people will understand 
this.  So here’s my example my wife always tells me this.  We have a car that you’re buying a car now 
it’s going to be $300 for 5 years so we went to the fifth year and now we want to buy another car that’s 
going to be $300 so we are just continuing the car payment from the first car to the second car for 
another 5 years.  No more money is coming out of your paycheck or that kind of thing.  So only this 
situation is we’re doing it from the sewer debt which is the 1st car to the firefighters which would be the 
2nd car.   That’s how I can explain it.  No more money is going to come out of your paycheck to pay 
more tax. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct and I’ll just add to that.  Thank you Councilman Trombley. That if you want 
to know the effect on your tax bill, look at what your sewer debt levy is.  That would be a good estimate 
because it may be a couple dollars more next year with the increase of your homes or later--that type of 
stuff.  That would be a good amount to judge what how or what it would be.  Are there any other 
council--I’ll read another letter which is the last one that I have.  Its’ from David and Karen Sabuda, 
14788 Stoneham Court: 
(SABUDA email:) 
“Dear Mayor Swift and City Council Members, 
  
Please utilize this email as our objection to the special assessment to hire a limited number of full-time 
firefighter paramedics to provide fire and emergency protection throughout the City.  My wife and I 
object for two reasons.  Those reasons are as follows: 
  
1.       We feel that this important item should be placed on the ballot for voter consideration and not 
through an annual special assessment process. (i.e. Headlee override or Charter vote)” 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Well my reaction to that already is that would simply be the preferential way, but 
with the urgency that we have to address the problem that only seems to be getting worse and we need 
we just don’t have the funds without using it without using the special assessment district. 
 
2.       We also feel that the standby firefighter and ambulance service is a waste of tax payer dollars.  
We are more in favor of a Public Safety System (combining police and fire staffs) with a private 
ambulance service.  This way more public safety protection is given to the public.  I have worked with 
this system for over ten years in Southeast Oakland County and found it to be extremely protective and 
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proactive. 
  
Thank you for allowing us to comment via email during these tough times.  It is appreciated.” 
 
Very Sincerely, 
  
David and Karen Sabuda 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I know the reference to public safety was the one addressed by the Public Safety 
Committee I guess with the cost associated with it and I just don’t know if we have the number of the 
staff to combine the two.  So if there is any member of--Councilmember Towle or Blanchette--who are 
members of the committee,  what discussion did we have and it’s probably a year or so ago on doing 
the public safety cross-training officers     I think is what that’s they’re referring to. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor we had discussed that and we looked at it but it really didn’t get a 
whole lot of support for it given some of the manpower issues we had at that time in if not only the fire 
dept. but also the police dept. and I would like to point out that again we don’t have firefighters just 
waiting at the police station doing nothing just _____ our firefighters are firefighters/paramedics the 
vast, very vast majority of their time is spent on ambulance runs. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct thank you.  Councilwoman Blanchette is there anything you wanted to add? 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  No. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thank you. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN ONEIL:  I do. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilwoman ONeil, I’m sorry. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN ONEIL:  I think that the amount of money that it would cost to train all of the 
police officers just to become firefighters, you could only probably do one at a time due to our 
manpower it would be very costly and a very lengthy process.  I don’t think--I don’t think it’s a bad 
idea, but I don’t think that for us at this time would be a very productive idea. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Right. I think somewhere down the road it’s probably a good idea, but just the time 
it would take would not be a good idea to address the problem that we have right now.  Thank you. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Towle. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Again I want to address our immediate problem.  I agree with Sussie with 
the time required.  If we had a plan like that, it would take you several years to put it in place.  You 
could institute when say hiring a new police officer to also be a firefighter.  It would be pretty difficult 
to take all our officers _________at any time and put them in a firetruck. That’s something we’d have 
to do on a long range approach. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  All right, thank you.  We do have one more, I’m sorry, it’s an email from 
Christopher and Suzanne Fuhr, 17676 Poplar.  It says: 
 
(FUHR’S email:)  “Hello, 
 
We are opposed to the creation of a full time Fire Dept.  We understand your proposal that taxes will 
not be increased because the Sewer Levy is being replaced with this Special Assessment.  But we have 
several concerns: 
 
1.  Did you consider allowing the Sewer Levy to expire and allow those savings to pass on to the 
residents during this time of historic lay offs and loss of income?  Or do you see this as an opportunity 
to keep spending public funds while the taxpayers are losing income? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Does council want to address that first or should I?  Anyone on council? Ok I will, 
well obviously, if we did let the levy expire, obviously, the taxes would go down and we still be stuck 
we’d still be coming back to this.  With the issue we have at the fire dept.  The timing of this,  I admit, 
is not the best, but it’s something we’ve addressed for a long time and things just seem to be getting in 
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the way and so this is--we are up against the clock now to get this assessment done so that’s why we 
are looking for your input at the next two meetings that deal with this so everybody will be heard.  We 
have a problem that needs to be fixed. 
 
(FUHR’S email:)  2.  Did you fully examine the long term costs such as increased legacy costs, 
increased retirement costs and increased health care costs?  Will the expiring Sewer Levy cover these 
increased costs or is another special assessment or tax increase inevitable? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Well the second assessment is certainly is going to happen.  I don’t know and Doug 
or probably Rob could answer this best. The cost relating to all the health care costs and other benefits.  
We do know that’s going to go up and hopefully the levy or the special assessment will cover those 
costs. For the most part at least the first and second year.  Doug? 
 
MR. MCMAHON:  I can answer that question your honor. If you don’t mind. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Go ahead Rob. 
 
MR. MCMAHON:  Currently we won’t have any legacy costs so with the addition of the new hire full 
time employees. I believe that we have their health savings account as opposed to OPEB and we have a 
401 style program for retiree financial package. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok so there won’t be the normal cost that we have for retiree health care, pensions 
and all that type of thing. 
 
MR. MCMAHON:  Correct, we won’t have any of those. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok thank you.  Do you want to add anything to that Doug. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  And no, I apologize I had my audio off for a second there.  No the costs we did 
estimate for this year was based on what we are currently being charged for our active employees.  So 
that is where we got that and we have no idea what the future costs are going to be.  But we are hoping 
that with the annual increase in taxable value, that those will offset any increases in our healthcare 
costs.  And as Mr. McMahon mentioned the idea is to offer the same package as all of our other 
employees or other new hires are getting which does not include any legacy costs. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok thanks. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Towle. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  the figures that we were provided with this would be an additional cost of 
$500,000.00 a year. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok thank you and then I’ll continue on and Chief Lammers may be able to answer 
this just off the top of his head hopefully, it says: 
 
(FUHR’S email:)  3.  Does Riverview need a full time Fire Dept?   
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  we already have a full time fire dept so that one’s easy.   
 
(FUHR’S email:)  “How many fire calls are there per year?  How many medical calls are there per 
year? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  So, if Chief Lammers could just give us a rough number so the rest of the public 
knows.  Just how many runs your department goes on? 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Is he there? 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes. 
  
CHIEF LAMMERS:  Can you hear me now?  I do not have an exact number of calls related to EMS I 
can tell you that 96-98% of our call volume is based on EMS.  In 2012, we had a total of 1,812 runs.  In 
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2018, we went up to 3021.  Last week as an example we had a total of 67 runs. Four of those were fire 
related. Just last week so if that estimate were to continue, we would be up to over 3400 runs annually. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, so clearly there is a need.  The next question was: 
 
(FUHR’S email:)  4.  Did the current part time Fire Dept. staff provide input?  
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I know there was input from all kinds of input __________ so the staff has had 
input on what they would like to see I’m sure that took place. 
 
(FUHR’S email:)  5.  Did you consider creating a Public Safety Dept. where Police and Fire services 
are combined?  
  
MAYOR SWIFT:  We addressed that already. Many cities in Michigan have successful Public Safety 
Depts. and realize reduced labor and legacy costs while paying each individual Officer an increase. 
  
MAYOR SWIFT:  Again I think we addressed that already.  
 
(FUHR’S email:)  Again, we are strongly opposed to creating a full time Fire Dept. through this Special 
Assessment. 
 
Regards, 
 
Christopher and Suzanne Fuher 
17676 Poplar St 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Doug, unless you received another email that’s the last one I have. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes, your honor. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  You have one more there Andy. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  Yeah there’s one more. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:   Go under Candela’s, Michael Candela’s, it’s from James Catrell. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, hold on. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:   It’s the second one. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, well the reason I didn’t include that one because  he had emailed me really early 
and didn’t say he wanted it part of the record but I can make it if council wants to. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Well, it was in the suggestion box so I think it should be made part. 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, I got a hold of the email it says:   
 
(KITURKES email:)  Andy, would like to confirm that as citizens we will be allowed to vote on the 
proposal of the Special Assessment District.  Seems to me that all tax issues are voted on.  
  
Thank you, James Kirturkes, 18616 Hamann Avenue, Riverview, Michigan 48193-7461 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  And this is how I answered him:   
Good morning James, 
A special assessment is not something residents vote on.  It is an action taken by council that places a 
special assessment on the (in this case the entire city).  The special assessment is for a set period of 
time.  Also in this case it is for one year.  The council will need to do the special assessment next year 
also with a one year time frame.  Then, In November of 2021, a millage proposal will go before the 
residents to vote one.  This process may seem a little cumbersome, but it is necessary. 
 
I’m sure by now that you’re aware of the problem we are having with staffing at the fire department.  
We’ve tried many different ways to resolve the problem that have had little or no effect on the solution.  
As you know, our department is staffed by all part-time employees.  That model has worked very well 
for many, many years.  Part-time means no benefits or legacy costs.  This has save our residents (I hope 
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this is right) about million dollars a year.  We would regularly recruit new firefighters/EMT’s to replace 
those that left for other full-time jobs.  While that has changed considerably over the past several years, 
there are no new recruits to be found. 
 
So we are switching to a staff of 8 fulltime firefighter/paramedics.  This comes at a cost of around a 
million dollars (but I think it’s about $500,000 is that Rob could correct me, with benefits).  We will 
also be maintaining a certain number of part-time firefighters. 
 
The reason for the assessment now is that we have sewer debt   retiring this June.  We are looking to 
replace that sewer debt payment with this special assessment of equal value.  So the net effect is we 
will get a full time staff at the fire department with no net increase in taxes. 
 
If we don’t do the assessment, the only real options available are staffing the fire department with no 
EMT’s or paramedics) and contract out the ambulance service to a private company.  This would still 
likely create a need for a taxes   because we also bring in about $400,000 in revenue in ambulance fees. 
 
Then I said that I hope this helps.  So if there is anything that council wants to add to that response just 
let me know. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  Your Honor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilwoman Blanchette. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  Yes, just correct me if I’m wrong, but the revenues that we 
would get from having our own ambulance services, if we privatized it, we wouldn’t get any revenue, 
correct? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  Thank you. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Towle. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  I think everybody on council has kind of struggled with trying to get this 
issue resolved because we’ve been addressing for more than a year.  I think we’ve taken input from 
anyone who was willing to give it to us and we’ve kind of analyzed each probe and I believe this is the 
most economical way we believe and hopefully the problem will be resolved. 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct, any other councilman comments? 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Mayor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Trombley, Mayor I had got up because I only had 1% on my phone 
because I had a resident—I don’t know who the resident is and he asked me not to use his name 
because he didn’t want to come on here but he had two questions:  let me go get it . . . 
  
MAYOR SWIFT:  Randy?  
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Ok. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Hold on Jim, hold on Councilman Trombley. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY PENTIUK:  Yes sir. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I have a question, it’s just very simply can we have, I know in the end people don’t 
have to identify themselves if they don’t want, but I guess Councilman Trombley is going to read the 
question.  I just want to make sure that it’s __________ anonymous questions? 
 
CITY ATTORNEY PENTIUK:  Yes, it’s appropriate to go ahead and listen to the question.  This is for 
council is to take this under advisement anyway so it’s not really so important to the source as to the 
content. 
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MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thank you, go ahead Councilman Trombley. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  All right, two questions, it says two things:  if the number of fulltime 
firefighters falls below minimum staffing due to injury/vacation, how is manpower supplemented?  
Isn’t that an issue that’s facing the police right now? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I’ll have to have Doug address or the Chief of Police.  I don’t know if  it’s a staffing 
issue at the police dept.  We know how we do it at the fire dept, we have contract ambulances filling in 
when we’re short.  But Doug, is Chief Rosebohm on line?   
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  He is give me one second, I will unmute him.  Chief Rosebohm. 
 
CHIEF ROSEBOHM:  To answer that question, we’re back filling the police dept. as we speak with 
new staff so as we increase our numbers to the numbers that are allowed to the council limit of 25.  Our 
staffing is because we’re short staffed because we don’t have enough people hired yet. So, we’re 
building that up and right now we’re encountering overtime because of the crisis but we back those 
with current staff with no problems. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  All right thank you Chief. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Trombley. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  And the second question is:  don’t you lose the trust of every new 
millage when you try to supplement it as a temporary millage. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I don’t understand the question. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Well, I’m just reading it off of here so . . . this is not a temporary 
millage, I guess, is what we’re saying. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Well #1 we even use the correct terminology that it’s not a millage it’s an 
assessment. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Right. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  A special assessment this year and an assessment next year.  What it comes down to 
is when it goes on to the ballot in November, the millage rate would be set at that time. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Yeah that’s what I wanted to hear you say because you already said it 
once and maybe he came on late. 
   
MAYOR SWIFT:  Any other council want to chime in on that one?  Councilman Workman. Let’s see 
if we can get you unmuted? Hold on, wait Dean. Ok. 
 
COUNCILMAN WORKMAN:  Am I unmuted?   
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Yes. 
 
COUNCILMAN WORKMAN: Yeah,  it’s not a millage it’s some funding that we’re getting to address 
a problem right now and then at a later date go for a millage so we’re addressing an issue we’re not 
trying to develop more of a millage. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: Yes that’s a good way to put it, we are doing this in  reaction to a problem that’s 
occurred and we are doing our best to address it.  
 
COUNCILMAN WORKMAN: That we feel needs are immediate attention. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct, thank you. 
 
COUNCILMAN NORTON:  Your honor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Norton. 
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COUNCILMAN NORTON:  Could Chief Lammers share with everybody online and who’s watching 
about the grant that we applied for and when we should know about that and if we are approved that 
grant what that will help with doing this implementation? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Yeah, that’s a great suggestion.  Chief Lammers?  Doug if you could find him and 
unmute him. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes, he is unmuted. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: Because that is important because this isn’t the sole funding source so we’re looking 
for this grant money. Chief Lammers? 
 
CHIEF LAMMERS  Yeah, Your Honor, I just received information today that the Safer Grant that is a 
federal grant that we will be applying for that would help funding of this program at least with the 
regard to the hiring full-time firefighters and what that grant does is over a period of three years it will 
help pay for wages and other benefits for the hiring of those individuals.  And we will be applying for 
that.  We have to get that paperwork in by May 15. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thank you.  Doug I’m trying to read through the chat here.  Cindy did you 
receive another email from a resident. 
 
CLERK HUTCHISON:  Yes, from Elizabeth Van Loozen. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Your honor I can bring that up on the shared screen. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, it says it’s from Elizabeth Van Loozen: 
 
(VAN LOOZEN email:) 
 
REF: In accordance with Governor Whitmer's Executive Order No. 2020-15, the Riverview City 
Council will be holding a special public hearing to discuss the creation of a Public Safety Special 
Assessment District to fund improved Fire and Advanced Life Support services to its residents. 
 
I‘ve lived in Riverview 30 years and have always experienced top-of-the line service from both police 
and fire departments of Riverview.  Why does Governor Whitmer get to dictate that we hire additional 
full-time personnel for these departments?  Shouldn’t that be left up to Riverview City residents to 
decide?  I vote NO on this.  You may say there will not be additional taxes levied right now, but I’m 
certain they will creep in to cover this added expense especially because with extra personnel come 
extra vehicles, equipment, etc. for their use.  Our taxes already went up significantly in 2019 
supposedly because of additional school millage plus reassessment of residential properties for any 
improvements the city may have missed in past tax assessments.  Mine went up $300 because of school 
millage and supposed missed prior improvements. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  So the best I can answer that and council can also add if they would like, the school 
millage was voted in by the residents, so they say that they wanted to take that task on.  And then with 
these missed improvements over the years, those are taxes they haven’t been paying through the years 
where they should have.  So I don’t know what her reference is to Governor Whitmer saying that we 
need to hire these people that’s up to us.  She doesn’t have any input on who we hire or who we don’t.  
This is all up to the recommendation of the council and the public safety committee that I’ve been 
addressing for years.  Any other council want to add their comments to this one? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, I’ve turned chat off here.  I’m going to scroll the list.  Doug do you see anybody 
who has their hand raised?   
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  I do not and I don’t see anybody in the chat room who has asked to speak. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok. 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  You may want to offer just one more time. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  All right, so anyone who wants to speak, let me get my instructions 
 
CLERK HUTCHISON:   Your honor, this is Cindy Hutchison, I also received an email and it was 
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received after 5 PM and it’s just somebody who’s opposed to this special assessment.  Is that for the 
record or since it came after 5:00 it is not eligible?  
  
MAYOR SWIFT:  No, I thinks it’s suppose to be before the meeting started so is it something you can 
read or does Doug have it? 
 
CLERK HUTCHISON:  I can read it, it’s right here if you’d like it’s very short.  It’s from Victor 
Hagan and he resides at 14807 Old Town Drive, and his statement is: 
 
(HAGAN email:) I would like go on record as being opposed to a special assessment for full time 
firefighters,” and that is it. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thank you,  it is now in the record.  Any other councilmembers? Councilman 
Towle. 
 
COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  I just want to point out this is a temporary assessment the voters will 
determine that once it’s placed on the ballot.  But it is temporary and the voters will decide whether 
they want to move forward and continue with it.  If were not successful in getting it passed we’re just 
have to look at all of these different options and making whatever cuts have to be made or whatever it 
takes. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct.  Does any other councilmen have a final comment as part of the public 
hearing? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, well next I would just ask at this point so is the expectation that we establish a 
special assessment district at the next council meeting as an agenda item?  Is that council’s intent? 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  Yes. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  Yes. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:   So Doug and Cindy you’ll have that at the next council meeting as one of the 
agenda items I assume it will be a regular council meeting that the agenda item would be to establish a 
special assessment district.  Then I think there’s another step or two.  Doug could you remind me of 
what that is? 
 
MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes, Your Honor, at the next Monday’s meeting for the agenda, we will have an 
item for council to approve the creation of the public safety special assessment district.  At the same 
meeting, we will also have council call for a second public hearing. The second public hearing is to 
review the special assessment levy roll.  And what this roll will show is each parcel and how much is 
being assessed against it based on the taxable value.  That public hearing will take place or we are 
requesting for it to take place on Monday, May 4.  So there will be two agenda items like I said the first 
one will be to approve the creation of the public safety special assessment district and the second item 
would be to call for a public hearing for comments on the special assessment levy roll. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thank you, any other questions by council?  
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  We only heard from three people saying yes is it the consensus 
of everybody or what? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Yes. 
 
COUNCILMAN TROMBLEY:  I said yes. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  I see at least four that’s what we need. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN ONEIL:  I say yes. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: Thank you, with that I will look for a motion to adjourn. 
 
CLERK HUTCHISON: Your Honor. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY PENTIUK:  Your honor. 
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MAYOR SWIFT:  Hold on, Randy. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY PENTIUK:  I think we both had the same thought.  Council Policy 1 states that we 
should have a motion to close the public hearing and then do a motion to adjourn. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Do I have a motion to close the public hearing? 
 
MAYOR SWIFT: Motion by Councilmember Trombley supported by Councilmember ONeil, any 
discussion, roll call: 
 
CLERK HUTCHISON:   
Councilmember Norton? Yes 
Councilmember ONeil? Yes 
Mayor Swift? Yes 
Councilmember Towle? Yes. 
Councilmember Trombley? Yes. 
Councilmember Workman? Yes 
Councilmember Blanchette?  Yes 
The public hearing closed at 8:51 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
MAYOR SWIFT:  With that, I would look for a motion to adjourn from Councilwoman Blanchette. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  So moved Your Honor. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Is there support? 
 
COUNCILMAN NORTON:  Support. 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Supported by Councilmember Norton, any discussion? 
 
Roll Call: 
Councilmember ONeil? Yes 
Mayor Swift? Yes 
Councilmember Towle? Yes. 
Councilmember Trombley? Yes. 
Councilmember Workman? Yes 
Councilmember Blanchette?  Yes 
Councilmember Norton? Yes 
 
MAYOR SWIFT:  Let the record show that the Meeting adjourned at 8:52 p.m. 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________ 
 Andrew M. Swift, Mayor 
 
 
 _____________________________________ 
 Cynthia M. Hutchison, City Clerk 
 
 
 


	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	At this time, the Mayor asked if anyone wished to address the City Council.
	Heather Diepeveen  :  I submitted a rather lengthy list of questions that I’d Like to ______and I could share it on the screen but you haven’t enabled screen sharing.
	(The mayor explained the instructions about public comments and the public hearing to the resident:)
	Heather Diepeveen  :  So my comments and feedback are that I have concerns that that the city may not have done their due diligence in looking at the distribution of the calls that the Fire and EMS go on.  The way I read the public hearing notice it a...
	MAYOR SWIFT:  we can address this in the public hearing part but to answer your question Doug you can clarify this but the assessment is not going to be by parcel so somebody with a parcel with 300 apartments is not going to pay the same as a single f...
	MR. DRYSDALE:  That is correct the special assessment is based on the taxable value of your property so a home that maybe has a taxable value of 100,000 versus an apartment complex that has a million they will only pay on the 100,000 it’s not an equal...
	Heather Diepeveen :  ok that wasn’t included in any of the disclosure of the financial assessment in any of the paperwork that you provided to the residents.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  But that’s how it is assessed and you are certainly right on the number of calls we do have several nursing facilities in the City of Riverview and multi-family homes so that would information is correct we do have a lot of runs 3000 plu...
	Heather Diepeveen :  yeah and I appreciate it and if you look at the information I sent you 25% of the calls in the last three years were to multifamily dwellings and 30% were to single family dwellings and it doesn’t . . 18% were to the nursing care ...
	MAYOR SWIFT:  I think that is one way of looking at it, but the way we look at it we can’t distinguish who should what resident pays more everybody . . it’s based on the taxable value on the property is the fairest way we can do it  not as on the numb...
	Heather Diepeveen :  thank you, I’d appreciate if you could share some of the information that I provided um to the city council because I think the citizens would be interested in seeing it.  I understand the taxing or assessing the people based on t...
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thank you.
	Heather Diepeveen:  Thank you.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Is there anybody else with their hand raised for the Guest and Visitor Comment Portion?
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, I see none, Doug do you see any?
	MR. DRYSDALE:  I do not Mayor there is nothing in the chats.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, so we will move on to the Public Hearing.
	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	So with that, is there any comments council wants to make at this time before we open it up to the public?
	(The Mayor gave instructions to the public on how to communicate with council during this virtual public hearing.)
	HEATHER DIEPEVEEN:  Ms. Hutchison can you share, assuming you have share permissions, can you share the letter that I sent to the city council?
	CLERK HUTCHISON:  I believe the City Manager has your letter.
	COUNCILWOMAN ONEIL:  It was forwarded to all of us.
	MR. DRYSDALE:  It was sent to the entire council at 5:00.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  OK so all council has it.
	Heather Diepeveen:  Ok, but I’d like the people other than city council, I’d like the public to see it.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Do we have that ability Doug?
	Heather Diepeveen:  Yes, you do at the bottom of the screen you can share but you’ve disabled the participant screen sharing so I can’t share it, but I don’t know if Ms. Hutchison can.
	MR. DRYSDALE:  Your honor I can share that, we have the  screen sharing turned off to prevent people from sharing things from their screens, we have no control  what they can share and so we don’t want to get zoombombed or anything like that.  That’s ...
	MAYOR SWIFT: Ok.
	MR. DRYSDALE: If you give me a second, I will pull up the information.
	Heather Diepeveen:  Thank you.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok and we’ll wait for that.
	COUNCILMAN NORTON:  Your Honor.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Councilman Norton.
	COUNCILMAN NORTON: While we’re waiting, could I ask what -- Heather you said there wasn’t something  included what was it that you wanted included in the mailing.
	Heather Diepeveen:  I have other questions that I’d like to get answers to and I’d also like the public who’s on today to see the graph that I put together.  If I was there in person I would have done a presentation so everyone could have seen it but ...
	COUNCILMAN NORTON:  All right thank you.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  I’m sure she wants to go to page 2 is that correct Heather you want to see page 2.
	Heather Diepeveen: No just go to the yeah, yeah.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok.
	Heather Diepeveen:  So I have a couple of questions that I that weren’t addressed in any of the documentation that was shared with the public whether that be from the city clerk or otherwise.
	Question 1:  what’s the proposed term for which the special assessment will take place?  Is it 2020 or year over year?
	MAYOR SWIFT:  The special assessment would be for one year and that would get us up to what we need to do is obviously, this is cost some money so what we’re doing here is if we did a millage or something in November that would be too late.  We need s...
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, go ahead Heather
	Heather Diepeveen:  Ok, I’m assuming that’s correct.  That’s it one year cuz I didn’t hear anything from the council to the contrary.  The other one is the special assessment indicates that it will pay for a limited number of full time employees yet t...
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Doug, can you best answer that?
	MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes, Your Honor.  What the resident is looking at was the proposal that we gave to the public safety committee with different scenarios.  The recommendation was to go for 8 full-time paramedic/firefighters,  This would allow us to have ...
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, does that answer your question Heather?
	Heather Diepeveen:  Yes, it does, thank you, and then the other one is would the council consider starting with scenario two (2) and perhaps expand to eight (8) fulltime over time?
	MAYOR SWIFT:  I guess that we would have to reserve answering that because we need to see if two (2) per shift doesn’t work out for whatever reason that would be a consideration, but that is not the intent right now the intent is to start out with a w...
	MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes, yes you know your honor with six (6) full timers, we would be running into issues of potentially not have full-timers on duty because of overtime which raises the cost more.  So that’s why between myself and my staff in presenting ...
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thanks.
	Heather Diepeveen: Thanks and that kind of goes back to the question A) was the distribution of full time to part-time so if you have eight (8) paramedics on staff, you have different shifts right?  You have the day shift, the afternoon, the midnight ...
	COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor.
	MAYOR SWIFT: Yes, go ahead Doug or Bill.
	COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  The firefighter/paramedics, we don’t have just a firefighter group which was something we talked about setting up.  But all our existing personnel have dual capabilities.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Correct, so we’ll have the eight (8) paramedics.  The other ones will be a mix of paramedic/EMT specialists.  Is that correct Doug?
	MR. DRYSDALE:  Yes, yes but by the state regulations, we cannot just have a firefighter as the second person on the ambulance.  They have to be at least an EMT level certified and Chief Lammers can confirm that if I’m not correct.
	COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Bill.
	COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Yes, but our goal is to hire people who are firefighter/paramedics not just the paramedics.
	Heather Diepeveen:  Do you also have MFRs Medical First Responders or are they just EMTs and paramedic classification?
	COUNCILMAN TOWLE: They are firefighter/paramedic classification.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Right, and I don’t know if know the number of part-timers that we’re going to have. Doug do we know that yet on any one shift?
	MR. DRYSDALE:  Well, the goal would be to have two (2) full-timers working 24 hour shifts, so they are there all day.  The part-timers then would subsidize the dept. or fill in the staffing.  I’m not sure what the chief has determined yet how long of ...
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, thanks, anything else Heather?
	Heather Diepeveen:  No, so I’ll skip--I already asked for 3) I did that in the beginning talking about waiting the distribution, but you can see here you know that these are some of the statistics that I referenced earlier. The other part is the notic...
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Yes, this year and next year, yes.
	Heather Diepeveen: All right, thanks, could you go to the next page sorry, thank you.  Ok, so I kinda already touched on top there but the supporting data the public hearing notice that was mailed to the residents showed a street map and it didn’t sho...
	COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Mayor.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, Bill.  Councilmember Towle.
	Heather Diepeveen:  That’s all I have.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Thank you, Heather, but wait--Councilmember Towle may have a question.
	COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  To address the last question, could we have our legal dept. look into it to see if we could see somehow put some kind of annual costs or assessment just against the nursing facilities because of the number of calls and we didn’t fin...
	Heather Diepeveen:  you actually have the information or your fire  department has that so they can look, for example, between Rivergate Terrace-Rivergate Healthcare Center, there’s 493 beds; and if you look at Riverview Towers, that’s got 171 apartme...
	COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  The Fire Dept. did provide us with the number of calls provided to the nursing facilities in over a couple month period and even past a couple years period of time and we were keeping track of that when we were having all the variou...
	Heather Diepeveen:  Don’t get me wrong, I’m all about having a full-time emergency services personnel.  I’m just concerned that you have a disproportionate number of businesses, like an apartment complex or a nursing home or a senior living facility, ...
	COUNCILMAN TOWLE:  Those concerns have been expressed by others too.  One other point I want to make you know this is a plan we hope it resolves the problem it may not, you know, this combination may not work but for years again we had a part-time fir...
	MAYOR SWIFT: this is the best option we have right now.  So ok, anything else Heather?
	Heather Diepeveen:  No, thank you, thanks for your time.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Thank you very much.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, Doug can you unshare that so I can get my screen back? Ok, let me turn chat off so we can look through the list here – ok anyone else?  Lynn go ahead.
	COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  Thank you, can you hear me?
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Yes.
	COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  Ok, just an FYI for everyone, as of today as of this meeting, we do not have EMTs in the fire dept. We have paramedics and specialists--no EMTs.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Thank you, Lynn.
	COUNCILWOMAN BLANCHETTE:  You’re welcome.
	MAYOR SWIFT:  Ok, I’ll scan the list here to see if anybody else has their hand raised.   While we’re waiting actually what we’ll do--we did receive a couple of letters or emails from residents that we told that their comments would be read into the r...
	(CANDELA Email:)  I think the idea for a special assessment for hiring firefighter/EMTs, which I understand is for 8 personnel, using the 1.47 mills from expiring sewer debt is a good idea.  Further, I understand that the 1.47 mils would not cover the...
	I do not think dipping into the general fund reserve is a good idea.  Remember 2008, when the city had to scramble to find funds.  The city needs a strong reserve fund especially during difficult times.  It is my understanding that the city wants to h...
	MAYOR SWIFT: What I’ll do is to answer that the best I can and then if any other council member wants to chime in.  We’ll answer his questions as we go along. That one to me was pretty easy to answer because we had 3000 plus runs every year.  As menti...

